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Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

foundations)

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private

B Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as 1t may be made public By law, the IRS
generally cannot redact the information on the form
Bk Information about Form 990 and its instructions i1s at www.IRS.gov/form990

OMB No 1545-0047

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning 01-01-2013

B Check If applicable
I_ Address change

|_ Name change

I_ Initial return

|_ Terminated

I_ Amended return

|_ Application pending

, 2013, and ending_j 12-31-2013

2013

Open to Public

Inspection

C Name of organization
Wallowa Resources

91-1794627

Doing Business As

D Employer identification number

401 NE 1st Street Suite A

Number and street (or P O box if mail i1s not delivered to street address)| Room/suite E Telephone number

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
Enterprise, OR 97828

F Name and address of principal officer
Nils Christoffersen

82124 Black Marble Lane
Enterprise, OR 97828

(541)426-8053

G Gross receipts $ 1,437,895

H(a) Is this a group return for
subordinates?

H(b) Are all subordinates
included?

I Tax-exemptstatus [ 501(c)(3) [ 501(c) ( ) M(nsertno) [ 4947(a)(1)or [ 527

J Waebsite:

= www wallowaresources org

[T Yes ¥ No
[~ Yes|[v No

If "No," attach a list (see Instructions)

H(c) Group exemption number &

K Form of organization |7 Corporation |_ Trust |_ Association |_ Other =

L Year of formation 1996 | M State of legal domicile OR

Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
The purpose of this organization is to promote watershed health, stabilize and strengthen the natural resource based economy, and
broaden community understanding of the ties between environmental health and community health of Wallowa County, Oregon

ACInmies & Govelnance

2 Check this box M If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets

3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 11
4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, linelb) . . . . . 4 6
5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line 2a) 5 30
6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 10
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 7,647
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 7b -3,002
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 878,313 1,205,600
% 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 45,963 164,243
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d ) 6,686 21,824
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c,and 11e) 348,059 -203,346
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) 1,279,021 1,188,321
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines
$ 5-10) 495,117 451,473
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) m2,917
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d,11f-24e) 703,424 577,581
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 1,198,541 1,029,054
19 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 18 from line 12 80,480 159,267
E E Beginnir?e(;fr Current End of Year
%ﬁ 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 2,603,357 2,268,967
EE 21 Total habilities (Part X, line 26) 1,163,801 670,144
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtractline 21 from line 20 1,439,556 1,598,823

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of
my knowledge and belief, it Is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which
preparer has any knowledge

’ Hokk Rk K |2014—11—13
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here Nils Christoffersen Executive Dir
Type or prnint name and title
Pnnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |_ I PTIN

P d Robert P Seymour self-employed P00624415

ai Firm's name B Guyer and Associates CPAs Firm's EIN
Preparer
Use Only Firm's address B 2790 Main Street Phone no (541) 523-4471

Baker City, OR 97814

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Iinstructions)

[“Yes[ No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 11282Y

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 2

m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis PartIII . . . . . + .+ « + .« .+« . . I

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission

The purpose of this organization is to promote watershed health, stabilize and strengthen the natural resource based economy, and broaden
community understanding of the ties between environmental health and community health of Wallowa County, Oregon

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ? . . + v & o« o« wwe e e e e e [T Yes ¥ No

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? v v v e e e e e e e e e e [~ Yes [ No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O
4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by

expenses Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported

4a (Code ) (Expenses $ 445,325 Including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 136,745 )

FIELD ACTIVITIES - Wallowa Resources has the mission to protect the ecological and economic values of lands and rivers in and around Wallowa County from
invasion and degradation by noxious weeds and its forests from devastation by disease and wildfire The organization also works to provide land owners and
managers with the resources to maximize economic return and well being of the land

4b (Code ) (Expenses $ 159,668 Including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 8,646 )

Special Intiatives - Wallowa Resources I1s currently involved in bndging the urban-rural gap, promoting new businesses that provide job opportunities, restoring the
environment and habitat of streams and nivers and working with businesses to preserve the forest areas in and around the iIimmediate lands of Wallowa County,
Oregon

4c (Code ) (Expenses $ 122,424  including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 18,852 )

OUTREACH AND EDUCATION - Wallowa Resources Is involved in promoting healthy lands and communities through knowledge, research, and exploration The
organization works with people of all ages to connect hands-on with the nvers, mountains, and forests, in hopes of invoking a sense of stewardship for Wallowa
County

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses & 727,417

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)
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19

20a

Part III

Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3)or4947(a)(1) (otherthan a private foundation)? If "Yes,” Yes
complete Schedule A 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? b 2 Yes
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) No
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule C, 5 No
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts 1n such funds or accounts? If "Yes,"” complete
Schedule D, Part I 6 No
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II 7 No
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part 111 & . 8 No
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21 for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt
negotiation services? If "Yes,"”" complete Schedule D, Part 1V 9 No
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,| 10 No
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions Is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VI.%&) 11a | YeS
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VI 11b No
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIIIE . 11c | Yes
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X P e e 11d No
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, PartXE 11e | Yes
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that 11f No
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part
Did the organization obtain separate, Independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Parts XI and XII 12a No
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 12b No
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1n)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 No
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a No
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, iInvestment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments
valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 15 No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 No
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part 17 No
IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part
VIII, ines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I 18 | ves
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 Yes
"Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I1]
Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes,” complete Schedule H 20a No
If"Yes" to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b

Form 990 (2013)
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Part I

Page 4
13 @AA Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 21 No
government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and I
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States on | 55 N
PartIX, column (A), ine 2? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II] 0
Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3,4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s N
current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes,” 23 ©
complete Schedule ] .
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was I1ssued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b through 24d N
and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25a . e .. . e 24a 0
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b No
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year N
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c 0
Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" 1Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d No
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage In an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a No
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b No
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I
Did the organization report any amount on Part X, ine 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? 26 Yes
If so, complete Schedule L, Part II
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family 27 No
member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part

28a No
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV .« v & v v e e e e e ) 28b °
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was N
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c °
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 No
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified N
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 0
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, No

31
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"” complete N
Schedule N, Part IT 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations v
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 €s
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV,

Yes

and Part V, line 1 34
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a | Yes
If 'Yes'to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 35b | v
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 €s
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related N
organization? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36 °
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization N
and that is treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 °
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197 v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 es

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartV... . . . + v W v w « .« .« . .
Yes No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable . .| 1la 28
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter-0- if not applicable ib
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .+ +  « o« 4 4 a4 w e a e 1c Yes
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and
Tax Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered
by thisreturn . . . .+ .+« .+ v e e e e e e e e e 2a 30
b Ifatleastone s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b v
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a I1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see Instructions) s
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a Yes
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No” to /ine 3b, provide an explanation in ScheduleO . . . 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . . . . . w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e da No
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b No
c If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?
5c¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a No
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?
b If"Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . L L oo 00 0w e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization recelve a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a Yes
services provided to the payor?
b If"Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b Yes
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which i1t was required to
fille Form 82822 . . . . . . . 4 4 a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 72 No
d If"Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d | 0
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit
CONtract? . . + & & h h h h e e e e e e e e e e | 76 No
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7f No
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as
required? . . . 4 v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ey T No
h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form 1098-C? . . . « « v e e e e a e e e e e e e e e 7h No
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time duringtheyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 No
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 . . . . . . . . . . 9a No
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . . . . . 9b No
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII,ine12 . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem) . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a No
b If"Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
Year . . 4 4w e e e e e e e e 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to iIssue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a No
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization i1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization is licensed to 1Issue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> . . . . . 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 14b

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

Page 6

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a

"No" response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O.

See instructions.

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI 2
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax 1a 11
year
If there are matenial differences In voting rights among members of the governing
body, or If the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee
or similar committee, explain in Schedule O

b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . .+ v v 4 4 e e e e e e e e W | 1 6

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 Yes

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 3 No
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?

4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
filed? No

5 Didthe organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 No
Did the organization have members or stockholders? No

7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? 7a No

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders,| 7b No
or persons other than the governing body?

8 Didthe organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following

a The governing body? 8a Yes
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b No

9 1Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes " provide the names and addresses n Schedu/e (0] 9 No
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a No

b If"Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
1l1a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing
the form? 1la | Yes
b Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No,” go to line 13 12a | Yes
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
rise to conflicts? 12b No
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,” describe
in Schedule O how this was done 12c | Yes
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 No
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 No
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a No
Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b No
If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see Instructions)

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? 16a No

b If"Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate Its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 I1s required to be filedm

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you made these available Check all that apply

[T own website [ Another's website [¥ Uponrequest [ Other (explainin Schedule 0)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of
Interest policy, and financial statements available to the public during the tax year

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization

kJoni Maasdam 401 NE First Suite A
Enterprise, OR 97828 (541)426-8053

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 7

m Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis PartVII . . . . . . . « « .« . . . I

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s
tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation Enter-0-1n columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of "key employee "

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, or highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations
List persons In the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest
compensated employees, and former such persons
[T Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless | compensation | compensation amount of
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related other
any hours and a director/trustee) organization organizations compensation
for related oS | _ 2 = o T |n (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099- from the

organizations |[= & | = | & [¢ |24G |2 MISC) MISC) organization
oz % |9 o> | =
below = s |3 o e o |2 and related
g [ = il = i R
dotted line) cC |z P organizations
= T B o
- = L} [m]
— o Mt =
c | = I =
AEHEEE
O I a
1 B
- >
[}
(1) Kendrick Moholt 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(2) Kelly Birkmaier 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(3) Gall Hammack 2 00
X 0 0 0
Vice Chair 0 00
(4) Larry Nall 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(5) Jim Zachanas 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(6) Brad Stephens 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(7) Mike Hayward 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(8) Doug McDaniel 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(9) James Henson 2 00
X 0 0 0
Chaiman 0 00
(10) Peter Ferre 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(11) Joe Dawson 2 00
X 0 0 0
Director 0 00
(12) Nils Christoffersen 40 00
X 55,661 0 33,246
Executive Dir 0 00
(13) Myron Kirkpatnck 40 00
X 63,648 0 9,670
Treasurer 0 00

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

Page 8

m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless compensation compensation amount of other
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization (W- | organizations (W- from the
for related o= — 2 = o T | | 2/1099-MISC) 2/1099-MISC) | organization and
organizations a a S |2 T 25 |2 related
below = = 2|2 o %ﬁ 3 organizations
g [m = == == i)
dotted line) c = o |T
o2 =) = | o
- = E g
c = I =
g |2 I
T 5 =
€ o
[}
i1b  Sub-Total >
Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A >
Total (add lines 1b and 1c) * 119,309 42,916
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization®0
Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual 3 No
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greaterthan $150,000°? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule J for such
individual a4 No
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person 5 No
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year
(A) (B) (©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization »0

Form 990 (2013)
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m Statement of Revenue

Page 9

Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .. .. . L
(A) (B) (©) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from
function revenue tax under
revenue sections
512-514
@ la Federated campaigns . . 1a
2
= § b Membership dues . . . . ib
=]
(e = |
2 £ ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . 1c
el
E 5 d Related organizations . . . id
o=
o = e Government grants (contributions) 1e 519,132
in
E - £ All other contnbutions, gifts, grants, and 1f 686,468
E T} similar amounts not included above
—
.'E 5 g Noncash contributions included in lines
= la-1f $
==
= = h Total. Add lines 1a-1f 1,205,600
oom -
@ Business Code
£ 2a Educational Programs 8,413 8,413
@
=
& b Field service programs 151,690 151,690
g € Special intiative Progm 4,140 4,140
E d
— e
&
= f All other program service revenue
=
& g Total. Add lines 2a-2f - 164,243
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, 9324 8741 583
and other similar amounts) * ! !
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds , , * 0
5 Royalties * 0
(1) Real (1) Personal
6a Gross rents 186,798
b Less rental 239,983
expenses
¢ Rental income -53,185
or (loss)
d Net rental income or (loss) [ -53,185 -52,091 -1,094
(1) Securities (11) Other
7a Gross amount
from sales of 12,500
assets other
than inventory
b Less costor
other basis and
sales expenses
Gain or (loss) 12,500
Net gain or (loss) - 12,500 12,500
8a Gross income from fundraising
L& events (not including
=5
T $
- of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
& See Part1IV, line 18
o
i a 17,113
&
= b Less direct expenses . . . b 6,981
=1
o) ¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . . @ 10,132 10,132
9a Gross Income from gaming activities
See Part1IV, line 19
a 15,550
b Less direct expenses . . . b 2,610
c¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities . . .m 12,940 12,940
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances
a
b Less costofgoods sold . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from sales of inventory . . m 0
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
11a Book Income of Subsidiary 900099 -173,233 -173,233
b
c
d All other revenue
e Total.Addlines 11a-11d -
-173,233
12  Total revenue. See Instructions -
1,188,321 -48,581 7,647 23,655

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 10
m Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns All other organizations must complete column (A)
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX .. .. L
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) PrOgraf‘nB)SENICE Manage(ﬁ)ent and Funélr)a)smg
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
In the United States See Part IV, line 21 0
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
United States See PartIV, line 22 0
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the United
States See PartIV, lines 15 and 16 0
Benefits paid to or for members 0
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees 162,225 83,713 78,512
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 0
7 Other salaries and wages 250,788 173,796 76,002 990
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include section 401 (k)
and 403(b) employer contributions) 0
9 Other employee benefits 26,378 18,249 8,020 109
10 Payroll taxes 12,082 8,404 3,614 64
11 Fees for services (non-employees)
a Management 0
b Legal 3,714 3,714
¢ Accounting 7,290 7,290
d Lobbying 0
e Professional fundraising services See PartIV, line 17 0
f Investment management fees 0
g Other(Ifline 11g amount exceeds 10% ofline 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on
Schedule O) 0
12 Advertising and promotion 600 600
13 Office expenses 0
14 Information technology 0
15 Rovyalties 0
16 Occupancy 37,286 29,829 7,457
17  Travel 11,898 10,255 1,643
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials 0
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 0
20 Interest 17,515 17,515
21 Payments to affiliates 0
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 42,047 30,381 11,666
23 Insurance 27,073 27,073
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24e Ifline 24e amount exceeds 10%
of ine 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O )
a Consultants and Contractors 355,583 315,168 39,990 425
b Project Supplies 38,421 36,181 2,240
c Other Expense 28,489 18,623 8,537 1,329
d repairs & maintenance 6,111 2,218 3,893
e All other expenses 1,554 1,554
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 1,029,054 727,417 298,720 2,917
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only If the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation Check
here ® [ if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

IEEIEEd Balance Sheet

Page 11

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .. '
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing 65,184 1 16,642
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2 0
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3 0
4 Accounts recelvable, net 79,084 4 55,245
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, and highest compensated employees Complete Part II of
Schedule L
5 0
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
" organizations (see Instructions) Complete Part II of Schedule L
T 6 0
ﬂ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 199,815 7 121,714
< 8 Inventories for sale or use 16,751 8 17,188
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 24615 9 24,732
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis Complete
Part VI of Schedule D 10a 1,513,466
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 458,384 1,095,706| 10c 1,055,082
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 1,019 11 1,174
12 Investments—other securities See Part IV, line 11 12 0
13 Investments—program-related See Part IV, line 11 1,121,183 13 977,190
14 Intangible assets 14 0
15 Other assets See PartIV,linell 15 0
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 2,603,357| 16 2,268,967
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 148,689 17 123,893
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 193,982| 19 102,694
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 20
w 21 Escrow or custodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
:E 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
= key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
ﬁ persons Complete Part II of Schedule L 441 511 22 243,596
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 245,000 23 149,645
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 134,616| 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal Income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other habilities not included on lines 17-24) Complete Part X of Schedule
D 3| 25 50,316
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 1,163,801| 26 670,144
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here & [ and complete
E lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
% 27 Unrestricted net assets 1,368,274 27 1,331,982
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 71,282| 28 266,841
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 29
u:. Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » [ and
E complete lines 30 through 34.
- 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-1n or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
.»;':|:"1I 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
0 33 Total net assets or fund balances 1,439,556| 33 1,598,823
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 2,603,357 34 2,268,967

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 12
lm Reconcilliation of Net Assets
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI g
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
1 1,188,321
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 1,029,054
3 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 2 from line 1
3 159,267
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 1,439,556
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
5
6 Donated services and use of facilities
6
7 Investment expenses
7
8 Prior period adjustments
8
9 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0)
9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
column (B)) 10 1,598,823
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII .
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [ cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explainin
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on
a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [T Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
If Yes,' check a box below to Iindicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
c If"Yes," to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c No
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a No
b If"Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 3b
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2013)
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990EZ)

Department of the

Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

2013

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1)
nonexempt charitable trust.

I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. = See separate instructions.
P Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at

Name of the organization
Wallowa Resources

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

www.irs.gov /form990.

91-1794627

m Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization I1s not a private foundation because iti1s (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box )

1 [T A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 [T A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E )

3 [T A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [T A medical research organization operated In conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state

5 [T An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described In
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II )

6 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [ Anorganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II )

8 [T A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part II )

9 [T An organization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of Iits support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable Income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2). (Complete PartIII )

10 [T An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety See section 509(a)(4).

11 [T Anorganization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [ Typel b [ Typell ¢ [ Typelll - Functionally integrated d [ Type III - Non-functionally integrated
e [T By checking this box, I certify that the organization I1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or
section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it i1s a Type I, Type II, or Type I1I supporting organization,
check this box
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (1) Yes | No
and (1) below, the governing body of the supported organization? 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g(ii)
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (1) above? 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s)

(i) Name of
supported
organization

(i) EIN

(iii) Type of
organization
(described on

(iv) Is the
organization In
col (i) listed In

(v) Did you notify
the organization
in col (i) of your

(vi) Is the
organization In
col (i) organized

(vii) Amount of
monetary
support

lines 1- 9 above your governing support? intheU S 7
or IRC section document?
(see
instructions))
Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990EZ.

Cat No 11285F

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

Page 2

IERTESN Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under

Part II1. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

1

6

in)
Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual
grants ")
Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf
The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
Total. Add lines 1 through 3
The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, column
(f)
Public support. Subtract line 5 from
line 4

(a) 2009

(b) 2010

(c) 2011

(d) 2012

(e) 2013

(f) Total

1,001,798

1,947,896

1,379,512

922,126

1,205,600

6,456,932

1,001,798

1,947,896

1,379,512

922,126

1,205,600

6,456,932

6,456,932

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year

7
8

10

11

12
13

beginning in)

(a) 2009

(b) 2010

(c) 2011

(d) 2012

(e) 2013

(f) Total

Amounts from line 4

1,001,798

1,947,896

1,379,512

922,126

1,205,600

6,456,932

Gross Income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar

sources

-3,542

-363

304

5,982

9,324

11,705

Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business Is regularly
carried on

Otherincome Do notinclude
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IV )

-27,119

838,024

218,117

421,012

-173,233

1,276,801

Total support (Add lines 7
through 10)

7,745,438

Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see Iinstructions)

[ 22 |

First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a 501(c)(3) organization, check

this box and stop here

»

Section C. Computation of P

ublic Support Percentage

14
15
16a

17a

18

Public support percentage for 2013 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f))

Public support percentage for 2012 Schedule A, PartII, line 14

14

83 360 %

15

81000 %

33 1/3% support test—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
33 1/3% support test—2012. If the organization did not check a box online 13 or 16a, and line 15 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2013. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a,or 16b, and line 14

I1Is 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test, check this box and stop here. Explain

Mo
w

in Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

organization

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
151s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.

Explainin Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test The organization qualifies as a publicly

supported organization

Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see

Instructions

N

L
L

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 3
.m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualfy under
Part II. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual grants ")
2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that 1s related to the
organization's tax-exempt
purpose
3 Gross recelipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or
business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
6 Total.Add lines 1 through 5
7a Amounts includedonlines 1, 2,
and 3 recelved from disqualified
persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than
disqualified persons that exceed
the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year
c Addlines 7aand 7b
8 Public support (Subtract line 7¢
from line 6 )
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
9 Amounts from line 6
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar
sources
b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511 taxes)
from businesses acquired after
June 30,1975
c Addlines 10a and 10b
11 Net income from unrelated
business activities not included
in line 10b, whether or not the
business Is regularly carried on
12 Otherincome Do notinclude
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IV )
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c,
11,and 12)
14 First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yearas a 501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here >
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15
16 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part I1I, line 15 16
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2013 (line 10c¢, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 17
18 Investment income percentage from 2012 Schedule A, PartIII, ine 17 18
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 I1s more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 1s not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
b 33 1/3% support tests—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 orline 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and line 18
I1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Page 4

Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or
17b; and Part I1I, ine 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See Instructions).

Facts And Circumstances Test

subsidiary of Wallow a Resources

Part I, Line 10--Part I, Section B, line 10 represents income or loss from Wallow a Resources Community Solutions, Inc , a w holly ow ned

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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SCHEDULE D
(Form 990)

OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Financial Statements

k= Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 3
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions. * Information about Schedule D (Form 990) e sI-1 [ Lol {111 e
Intemal Revenue Service and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Wallowa Resources

91-1794627

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

1
2
3
4
5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors In writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? [~ Yes ™ No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors 1n writing that grant funds can be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring iImpermissible private benefit? [~ Yes ™ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

a 0N T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
[T Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or education) [ Preservation of an historically important land area
[T Protection of natural habitat [T Preservation of a certified historic structure

[~ Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d iIf the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

Held at the End of the Year

Total number of conservation easements 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and noton a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the tax year &

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds? [~ Yes [~ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
[

Amount of expenses Incurred In monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
L

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4 )(B)(1)
and section 170(h)(4 )(B)(11)? [ Yes [ No

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.

la

b

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide, in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide the following amounts relating to these items

() Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 3

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X L]

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items

Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3

Assets Included in Form 990, Part X 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2013



Schedule D (Form 990) 2013 Page 2
Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply)

a [~ Ppublic exhibition d [T Loan or exchange programs

b [ Scholarly research e [ Other

c l_ Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose In

Part XIII
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [T Yes [ No

i-14®A"A Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

included on Form 990, Part X? [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table
Amount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d  Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year le
f  Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes [~ No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII Check here If the explanation has been provided in Part XIII . . . . . . . . I_
Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a)Current year (b)Prior year b (c)Two years back| (d)Three years back | (e)Four years back
1la Beginning of year balance
b Contributions
c Netinvestment earnings, gains, and losses
d Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs
f Administrative expenses
g Endofyearbalance
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as
a Board designated or quasi-endowment
b Permanent endowment &
€ Temporarily restricted endowment &
The percentages In lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢c should equal 100%
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . . .+ . 4 4 4 44w e e e e e w e ] 3a(d
(ii) related organizations e e e e e e e e e e 3a(ii)
b If"Yes" to 3a(n), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? . . . . . . . . . 3b

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds

m Land, Buildings, and Equipment. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line
11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other | (b)Cost or other| (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (Investment) basis (other) depreciation

1a Land = . . v h e e e e e e 100,000 100,000
b Builldings . . . . .+ .« v e e e e 891,984 80,095 811,889
c Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,000 3,067 8,933
d Equipment . . . . . v v e e e e e e 509,482 375,222 134,260
e Other e e e e e e e e e e

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) . . . . . . . » 1,055,082

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Investments—Other Securities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b.

See Form 990, Part X, ne 12.

(a) Description of security or category
(including name of security)

(b)Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)Financial derivatives

(2)Closely-held equity Interests

Other

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lne 12 )

-

Investments—Program Related. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c.

See Form 990, Part X, line 13,

(a) Description of Investment

(b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13)

-

977,190

Other Assets. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d See Form 990, Part X, line 15

(a) Description

(b) Book value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.)

.k

Other Liabilities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See

Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
Federal income taxes

Bank Overdraft 46,091
tennant deposits 4,225
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25) m 50,316

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that

reports the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740) Check here If the text of the footnote has been
provided in Part XIII

-

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return Complete If
the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 12a.

Page 4

D o n o o

[
5

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12
Net unrealized gains on investments

Donated services and use of facilities

Recoveries of prior year grants

Other (Describe in Part XIII )

Add lines 2a through 2d

Subtract line 2e from line 1

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12, but noton line 1
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b
Other (Describe in Part XIII )

Add lines 4a and 4b

1
2a
2b
2c
2d
2e
3
4a
4b
4c
5

Total revenue Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, PartI, line 12 )

if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. Complete

D o n o o

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25
Donated services and use of facilities

Prior year adjustments

Other losses

Other (Describe in Part XIII )

Add lines 2a through 2d

Subtract line 2e from line 1

Amounts included on Form 990, PartIX, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b
Other (Describe in Part XIII )

Add lines 4a and 4b

1
2a
2b
2c
2d
2e
3
4a
4b
4c
5

Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18 )

m Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, ines 3,5, and 9, Part III, lines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,

PartV, line 4, Part X, line 2, Part XI, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XII, ines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any additional
information

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-E7) Fundraising or Gaming Activities 2013
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, lines 17, 18, or 19, orif the
Department of the Treasury organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. open to Public
Intemal Revenue Senvice P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. *See separate instructions.
P Information about Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www. irs.gov /form990.
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Wallowa Resources

91-1794627

IEEITE8 Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 17.

Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities Check all that apply
a [ Mailsolicitations e [v solicitation of non-government grants
b v Internet and email solicitations f ¥ solicitation of government grants
c¢ [ Phone solicitations g 2 Special fundraising events
d In-person solicitations
2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? |_ Yes |7 No
b If"Yes," list the ten highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser s
to be compensated at least $5,000 by the organization
(i) Name and address of (i) Activity (iii) Did (iv) Gross receipts (v) Amount paid to (vi) Amount paid to
individual fundraiser have from activity (or retained by) (or retained by)
or entity (fundraiser) custody or fundraiser listed in organization
control of col (i)
contributions?
Yes No
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Total. . . . . . .+ +« v v e e e e e .

3 List all states Iin which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it 1Is exempt from
registration or licensing

OR

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990or 990-EZ. Cat No 50083H Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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m Fundraising Events. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported
more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List
events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
(add col (a) through
Barn Dance col (c))
(event type) (event type) (total number)
ul}
= [1  Gross receipts 17,113 17,113
il
E 2 Less Contributions
ce 3 Gross income (line 1
minus line 2) . . . 17,113 17,113
4 Cash prizes
5 Noncash prizes
W
k]
2 le Rent/facility costs
k]
0
Iﬁ 7 Food and beverages
g 8 Entertainment
_
O 9 Other direct expenses . 6,981 6,981
10 Direct expense summary Add lines 4 through 9 in column(d) . . . . . . . .+ . . . | (6,981)

11 Net income summary Subtract line 10 from line 3, column(d) . . . . . . . . . . . W 10132

Gaming. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

4 (a) Bingo (b) Pull tabs/Instant (c) Other gaming (d) Total gaming (add
E bingo/progressive bingo col (a) through col
il
= (c))
&¢ | 1 Grossrevenue . . . . 15,550 15,550
$ 2 Cash prizes
0
=
%’,‘_ 3 Non-cash prizes 1,250 1,250
= 4 Rent/facility costs
2
) 5 Otherdirect expenses 1,360 1,360
™ Yes_ ... . %_ | Yes_ ... . % V' Yes_ 99000 %
6 Volunteer labor . . . F No F No ™ No
7 Direct expense summary Add lines 2 through 5 in column(d) . . . . . . .. .. . . . | 2,610
8 N 12,940
et gaming iIncome summary Subtractline 7 from line 1, column (d) P e e e e e e |

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization operates gaming activities

Is the organization licensed to operate gaming activities in each of these states? . . . . . . . . . . . . I_Yes |7N0

If "No," explain
No license 1s required for a raffle the size of the one conducted The organization i1s registered with the state of Oregon but a separate
gaming license 1s not required for the activities conducted

10a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended or terminated during the tax year? . . . . . |_ Yes |7 No

b If"Yes," explain

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Does the organization operate gaming activities with nonmembers? . . . . . . . «+ « . . . .« « .+ . . |_ Yes |7 No

12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficlary or trustee of a trust or a member of a partnership or other entity
formed to administer chanitable gaming® . . . . . . . v 4 v 4 v s s e s e e e o | Yes ¥ No

13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity operated In
The organization's facitity . . . .+ . .+ + « & + & + &« 4« 4 4 4 4 4 w« & a|13a %
Anoutsidefacility . . . . + . & & &+ &« 4 4 4 4 w4 4w 4w w .| 13b 100 000 %

14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and records

Name I Joni Maasdam

Address® 401 NE 1st Street Suite A
Enterprise, OR 97828

15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming

FEVENUE? & v & v 4 ke e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e o o T vYes M No
b If"Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization ® ¢ and the

amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party I ¢

€ If"Yes," enter name and address of the third party

Name I

Address I+

16 Gaming manager information

Name I

Description of services provided®
I_ Director/officer I_ Employee I_ Independent contractor
17 Mandatory distributions
a Isthe organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming icense? . . . . . . . . . . .4 e e a e e e e e e e e M ves ¥ No
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law distributed to other exempt organizations or spent
In the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year® $

1434 Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns () and (v), and
Part III, hines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15c¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any
additional information (see Instructions).

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Schedule L Transactions with Interested Persons OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) & Complete if the organization answered
"Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, lines 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 28b, or 28c,
or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.
Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. = See separate instructions. Open to Public

Intemal Revenue Service kInformation about Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at
www.irs.gov /form990.

Inspection

Name of the organization

Employer identification number
Wallowa Resources

91-1794627
lm Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3) and section 501(c)(4) organizations only).

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, PartIV, line 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b

1 (a) Name of disqualified person (b) Relationship between disqualified (c) Description of transaction (d) Corrected?
person and organization Yes | No

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under section
e - e ]

3 Enter the amount of tax, iIf any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization. . . . . . . » 3

m Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a, or Form 990, Part IV, line 26, or if the
organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5,6, 0r 22

(a) Name of (b) (c) (d) Loan to (e)Oniginal | (f)Balance |(g)In (h) (i)Written
Interested Relationship |Purpose of| or from the principal due default? Approved agreement?
person with loan organization? amount by
organization board
or
committee?
To From Yes No | Yes No Yes No
See Additional
Data Table
Total > 3§ 264,825 |

m Grants or Assistance Benefitting Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 27.
(a) Name of interested (b) Relationship between | (c) Amount of assistance (d) Type of assistance (e) Purpose of assistance
person Interested person and the
organization

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat No 50056A Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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i-149¥4" Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.
(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship (c) Amount of (d) Description of transaction |(e) Sharing

between interested
person and the
organization

transaction

organization's
revenues?

Yes

No

Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see Instructions)

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Additional Data

Form 990, Schedule L, Part II -

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN:

Name:

13000170
2013v3.1
91-1794627
Wallowa Resources

Loans to and from Interested Persons

(a) Name of (b) Relationship (c) Purpose of (d) Loan to (e)Oniginal (f)Balance (g) In (h) (i)Written
Interested with organization loan or from the principal due default? Approved agreement?
person organization? amount by board or
committee?
To From Yes| No | Yes No Yes No
(1) G Douglas Director Program X 400,000 200,000 No |[Yes Yes
McDaniel Trust
(2)Janet C Noel Director operatio X 18,000 No No |[Yes
Trust
(3) G Douglas Director operatio X 20,000 No No |Yes
McDaniel
(4)Peter Ferre Director operatio X 5,000 No No |[Yes
(5)James Henson  director operatio X 11,000 3,844 No |Yes Yes
(6) Christoffersen family m operatio X 40,000 35,981 No |Yes Yes
Family Liv
(7) Erik family m operatio X 25,000 25,000 No |[Yes Yes
Christoffersen
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SCHEDULE O

OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 2 01 3

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on

Form 990 or to provide any additional information. Open to Public
k- Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection
k- Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at
www.irs.gov/form990.

Name of the organization
Wallowa Resources

Employer identification number

91-1794627

990 Schedule O, Supplemental Information

Return Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part V|, Line 2 Description of Business or Family
Relationship of Officers, Directors, E

Doug McDaniel and Gall Hammack are husband and w ife

Form 990, Part VI, Line 11b Form 990 Review Process

A draft copy of the 990 I1s review ed by the CEO and a retired CFO (the one
that was full ti

me CFO during the year covered by the return) The draft 990 i1s also emailed
to each of th

e board members and comments solicited

Form 990, Part V|, Line 12¢ Explanation of Monitoring and
Enforcement of Conflicts

all Board members are local residents and in this small community, the
business activities

of each member are general know ledge In addition, with such a small
organization as Wall

ow a Resources, management knows w ho the Company Is dealing with and is
very sensitive to o

utward appearances If a business consideration or transaction involves a
Board member, th

at member Is asked to absent themselves from Board discussions of and
votes regarding it

The remaining members are then asked to pass a resolution in form
recommended by legal cou

nsel, recognizing the conflict, stating that it has been considered, concluding
that the t

ransaction is In the best interests of the Company and authorizing it

Form 990, Part V|, Line 19 Cther Organization Documents
Publicly Avallable

The organization's governing documents, policies and financial statements are
made available to the public upon request
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. . . OMB No 1545-0047
SCHEDULE R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships :
(Form 990) = Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37. 20 1 3
= Attach to Form 990. Ik See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury k- Information about Schedule R (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Open to P_ublic
Intemal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
Wallowa Resources

91-1794627 .
IEEREHEl 1dentification of Disregarded Entities Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ()]
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Primary activity Legal domicile (state Total iIncome End-of-year assets Direct controlling
or foreign country) entity
(1) Wallowa Resources Stewardship CenterlLLC Rental Building OR 161,279 1,137,858 |Wallowa Resources

401 NE 1st Street Ste A
Enterprise, OR 97828
27-1887223

IEXYTEil 1dentification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34 because it had one
or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Pnmary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code section Public chanty status Direct controlling Section 512(b)
or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity (13) controlled
entity?
Yes No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50135Y Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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EETREiid Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34
because It had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (6)) (k)
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity| Legal Direct Predominant Share of Share of |Disproprtionate| Code V-UBI | General or| Percentage
related organization domicile| controlling income(related, |total income |end-of-year| allocations? |amount in box| managing | ownership
(state or entity unrelated, assets 20 of partner?
foreign excluded from Schedule K-1
country) tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes No Yes | No

-14¥A"A Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V,
line 34 because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) g (h) 0]

Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity Legal Direct controlling | Type of entity Share of total | Share of end-of- Percentage Section 512

related organization domicile entity (C corp, S corp, income year ownership (b)(13)

(state or foreign or trust) assets controlled

country) entity?
Yes No
(1) wallowa Resources Project Management OR Wallowa C -173,233 1,305,629 100 000 % Yes
Resources

Community Solutions I

401 NE 1st Suite A
Enterprise, OR 97828
93-1319638

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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Transactions With Related Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note. Complete line 1 if any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage I1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?

a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties or (iv) rent from a controlled entity la | Yes
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b | Yes
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c No
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for related organization(s) 1d | Yes
e Loans orloan guarantees by related organization(s) 1le No
f Dividends from related organization(s) 1f No
g Sale of assets to related organization(s) 1g No
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s) ih No
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) 1i No
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s) 1j | Yes
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) 1k No
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l No
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) im No
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) in No
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) 1o No
p Remmbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses 1p No
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses 1q No
r Othertransfer of cash or property to related organization(s) 1r | Yes
s Othertransfer of cash or property from related organization(s) 1s No

2 Ifthe answerto any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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IEEYTEZ28 Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.
Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross

revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) 6)] (k)

Name, address, and EIN of entity Pnmary activity Legal Predominant | Are all partners Share of Share of Disproprtionate Code V?UBI | General or Percentage

domicile Income section total end-of-year allocations? amount In managing ownership

(state or (related, 501(c)(3) Income assets box 20 partner?

foreign unrelated, organizations? of Schedule

country) |excluded from K-1

tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes| No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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.m Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Instructions)

Return Reference Explanation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Wallowa Resources

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Wallowa Resources (a nonprofit
organization) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility I1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits We conducted our
audits 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the
financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those nsk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control Accordingly, we express no
such opinion An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Wallowa Resources’ investment in Integrated Biomass Resources, LLC, an investment accounted for on the
equity method, I1s carried at a deficit of ($110,259) on the balance sheet at December 31, 2013 and Wallowa
Resources’ share of Integrated Biomass Resources, LLC’s net loss of ($95,697) i1s included in Wallowa
Resources’ changes In net assets for the year then ended We were unable to obtain sufficient approprate audit
evidence about the carrying amount of Wallowa Resources’ investment in Integrated Biomass Resources, LLC as
of December 31, 2013 and Wallowa Resources’ share of integrated Biomass Resources, LLC’s net income for the
year then ended because we were unable to obtain audited financial statements or perform adequate audit
procedures Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to those amounts were
necessary

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the 2013 financial statements of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal
respects, the financial position of Wallowa Resources as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the changes In its
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of Amernca

2790 Mam Street Vlembers of 1005 Adams Avenue
Baker Citv. OR 97814 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants La Grande. OR 97850
541-523-4471 Oregon Socien of Certified Public Accountants 541-963-6009

541-523-3340 fax visit us at www glbm net 541-963-3589 fax



Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole
The consolidating schedules of financial position and changes In net assets on pages 27-33 are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the financial statements Such
information Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In
the United States of America In our opinion, except for the effects on the supplementary information of
the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the equity method investment described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the information 1s fairly stated in all matenal respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole

"""%*“ Aeri

Guyer & Assoclates
La Grande, Oregon
September 11, 2014
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WALLOWA RESOURCES

Comparative Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash on hand and m banks
Accounts recen able
Iy estments
Accrued interest
Prepaid expenses
Notes tecennable - curtent portion
Inv entory
Total Curtent Assets

Fived Assets
Buildings and improyements
Equipment
Land
Accumulated depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

Other Assets
Notes tecenable. net
Equity method mvestment 1n
Integrated Bromass Resources, LLC
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Curtent Liabilities
Accounts payable
Bank oz erdiaft
Pavioll habilities
Short-term notes
Accrued vacation
Accrued interest
Long-term debt - curtent maturities
Tenant deposits
Deferted tevenue

Total Curtent Liabilities

Non-curtent Liabilities
Accumulated losses on equity method myestment
Long-term debt. net of curtent maturities
Total Non-curtent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Untestricted
Temporatily restricted

Total Net As<ets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

December 31. 2013

December 31. 2012

18.312 70.116
66.948 184.059
1.174 1.019
7.291 2.216
25.590 26.030
9.185 -
17.188 16.751
145.688 300.191
903.984 901.484
1.856.788 1.828.815
100.000 100.000
(542.073) (410.516)
2.318.699 2.419.783
85.068 52.000
85.068 52.000
2.549.455 2.771.974
126.402 152.612
46.091 -
12.287 8.887
120.016 478.793
19.907 24447
1.055 1.746
35.012 26.541
4.225 4.225
137.694 193.982
502.689 891.233
110.259 14.562
337.684 426.624
447.943 441.186
950.632 1.332.419
1.331.982 1.368.273
266.841 71.282
1.598.823 1.439.555
2.549.455 2.771.974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement



WALLOWA RESOURCES

Consolidated Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Support

Federal. state and local govemment grants

Foundation and corporate grants
Contributions and scholarships
Program serv ice revenue
Rentals
Sale of non-refundable option
Other income

Total Support

Expenses
Program Services
Special mitiatives
Field activities
Outreach and education
Subsidiary activities
Total Program Services
Support Services
Admunustration
Total Support Services
Loss on equity method my estment
Total Expenses
Change m Net Assets
Beginning Net Assets

Net Assets Released trom Restriction

Ending Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 527.796 51 $ 527847
128.637 221.738 350.375
351.643 - 351.643
294 478 42.067 336.545
176.946 - 176.946
12.500 - 12.500
14.713 - 14.713
1.506.714 263.855 1.770.569
152.698 - 152.698
425992 - 425992
117.127 - 117.127
511.665 - 511.665
1.207.482 - 1.207.482
308.122 - 308.122
308.122 - 308.122
95.697 - 95.697
1.611.301 - 1.611.301
(104.587) 263.855 159.268
1.368.273 71.282 1.439.555
68.296 (68.296) -
$ 1.331.982 266.841 $ 1.598.823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement



WALLOWA RESOURCES

Consolidated Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Support
Federal. state and local government grants
Foundation and corporate grants
Contributions and scholarships
Program serice revenue
Rentals
Sale of business energy tax credit
Other mcome
Total Support

Expenses
Program Services
Special mnitiatives
Field activities
Outreach and education
Subsidiary Activities
Total Program Services
Support Services
Administration
Total Support Services
Loss on equity method m estment
Total Expenses
Change 1 Net Assets
Begmning Net Assets as Originally Reported

Net Assets Released trom Restriction

Ending Net Assets

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 666884 $ - 666.884
280.161 60.722 340.883
115.234 - 115.234
204.723 - 204.723
225371 - 225371
104.798 - 104.798
19.815 - 19815
1.616.986 60.722 1.677.708
122.166 - 122.166
408.902 - 408.902
138.905 - 138.905
559.152 - 559152
1.229.125 - 1.229.125
352.641 - 352.641
352.641 - 352.641
14.562 - 14.562
1.596.328 - 1.596.328
20.658 60.722 81.380
1.266.460 91.715 1.358.17>
81.155 (81.155) -
$ 1.368.273 $ 71.282 1.439.355

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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WALLOWA RESOURCES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Program Services

Outreach Total
Suppott Special Freld and Subsidiary Progiam
Services Initiatives Activities Education Activities Services
Duect Progiam Costs
Personnel costs $ - § 64583 § 131.558 § 89745 $ 110,678 § 396564
Contiact services - 48.109 266.590 469 8().886 396.054
Supplies - 312 23371 12,498 6.770 42951
Rent - - - 200 - 200
Taxes - - - - 22.281 22281
Insurance - 33 (5493) 105 23.034 17.679
Utilities - 469 1.229 542 98 A4 100.684
Repaits and maintenance - 130 322 1.766 11.774 13.992
Travel - 4324 4.320 1.611 6.317 16.572
Other ditect expenses - 9.075 1.952 7.596 - 18.623
Total Direct Program Costs - 127.035 423849 114532 360.184 1.025.600
General and Administiative Costs
Personnel costs 167.498 - - - - -
Contiact services 55.961 - - - - -
Supplies 2.240 - - - - -
Rent 006 - - - 460 460
Taxes 1.554 - - - 53 53
Insurance 32428 - - - - -
Utilities 4,467 - - - - -
Repaits and maintenance 3.893 - - - - -
Travel 1.643 - - - - -
Bad debt expense - - - - 26.989 26.989
Other general and administiative 13.604 - - - 1.507 1.507
Total General and Administrative Costs 283.288 - - - 29.195 29495
Other Expenses
Depieciation 11.666 25.663 2143 2574 89.510 119.890
Interest 13.168 - - 21 32.476 32.497
Total Other Expenses 21.83 25.663 2.143 2.595 121.986 152387
Total Expenses $ 308.122 § 152.698 § 425992 § 117.127 § 511.665 $ 1.207.482

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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WALLOWA RESOURCES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Program Services

Outreach Total
Support Special Freld and Subsidiary Program
Services Inttiatives Activities Education Activities Services
Duect Program Costs
Personnel costs $ - $ 69494 $ 157.100 $ 116422 $ 121.649 $  464.665
Contiact services - 45.201 221.904 6.495 118.953 392.553
Supplies - 370 12.956 6.059 5.500 244.885
Rent - - - 100 - 100
Taxes - - - - 10.397 10.397
Insurance - - 2.422 24) 14.111 16.509
Utilitres - 190 337 254 122.109 122.890
Repairs and maintenance - 772 2.867 465 13.683 17.787
Travel - 5.866 7.884 1.856 7.758 23.364
Other direct expenses - 153 3431 6.928 - 10.512
Total Drirect Program Costs - 122.047 408901 138.555 414.160 1.083.662
General and Administrative Costs
Personnel costs 188.188 - - - - -
Contiact services 30.251 - - - - -
Supplies 9.467 - - - - -
Rent - - - - 1.061 1.061
Taxes 1.352 - - - 150 150
Insurance 30.838 - - - - -
Utilities 8.028 - - - - -
Repairs and maintenance 3412 - - - - -
Travel 467 - - - - -
Bad debt expense - - - - 85.279 85.279
Other general and administrative 15.609 - - - 3.653 3.653
Total Genetral and Administiative Costs 287.613 - - - 90.143 90.143
Other Expenses
Depieciation 49.817 - - - 32347 32347
Interest 15.211 118 - 350 22.502 22971
Total Other Expenses 65.028 118 - 350 54.849 55.318
Total Expenses $ 352641 $ 122.165 $  408.901 $ 138.905 $ 559.152 $ 1.229.123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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WALLOWA RESOURCES

Comparative Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Cash Flows tfrom Operatmg Activities
Change m net assets

Adjustiments to reconcile change m net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation
(Gam) loss on mvestments
(Gam) loss on sale of tined assets
Donations m lieu of repay ment of debt
Fair market value adjustment
Bad debt expense

(Increase) decrease m
Accounts recervable
Accrued mterest receivable
Prepad expenses
Inventon

Increase (decrease) m
Accounts pavable
Accrued mterest pavable
Accrued expenses
Deterred revenue

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows tfrom Investmg Activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds fromsale of fixed assets
Advance fundmg of tenant unprovements
Recoven oftenant improvement costs

Net Cash (Used) by Investmg Activities

Cash Flows from Financmg Activities
Fmancmg of supplers
Prncipal repayv ments on short-term debt
Proceeds trom short-term debt
Prmcipal repayv ments on long-term debt
Proceeds from long-term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Fmancmg Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) m Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents as of Begmnmg of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents as of End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

December 31. 2013

December 31. 2012

159268 $ 81.381
131336 82.164
935.697 14.362
- (1.527)
(303.000) -
(135) (118)
26.988 85.279
117.111 (133.540)
(3.073) -
440 (9.606)
437) (16.751)
(26210) 21.756
(691) -
(1.140) 16.339
(56.288) 47.852
136.064 187.992
(30473) (631.636)
- 8.030
(79.209) -
2,663 -
(107.017) (623.586)
7.302 (52.216)
(792273) (339.353)
533500 598.085
(29471) (11.121)
154000 241.000
(126.942) 436.193
(97.893) 599
70.116 69517
(27779  $ 70.116




Wallowa Resources
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Organization

Wallowa Resources (Organization) was incorporated in Oregon on October 18, 1996, under the State of
Oregon Non-Profit Corporation Statutes The Organization seeks to promote watershed health, stabilize
and strengthen the natural resource-based economy and broaden community understanding of the ties
between environmental health and economic health in Wallowa County, Oregon and the surrounding
region

Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting

The Organization’s accounts are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting Under the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s Accounting Standards Codification ASC 958, the Organization is required
to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets All
contributions and grants are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor or grantor Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor or
grantor for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that
increases those net asset classes When a temporary restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released
from restriction Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net
assets if the restrictions expire in the year in which the contributions are recognized

Promises to Give and Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor gives or makes a promise to give to the Organization that is,
in substance, unconditional A grant contribution is distinguished from an exchange transaction as
follows a grant would likely be a contribution if the activity specified by the grant is planned and carried
out by the nonprofit and the nonprofit has the right to the benefits, a grant would likely be an exchange
transaction if the grantor provides the materials and retains the right to the results Donated in-kind
professional services are recorded as a contribution and an expenditure at fair market value During the
year ended December 31, 2013, the value of promises to give were not material and have not been
recorded

Principles of Consolidation and Operations of Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Wallowa Resources and its subsidiaries,
Wallowa Resources Community Solutions, Inc (a for-profit C-corporation) and Wallowa Resources
Stewardship Center LLC (an Oregon limited liability company operated as a non-profit) Wallowa
Resources owns all of the outstanding stock of Wallowa Resources Community Solutions Inc , which was
organized in May 2001 to assist Wallowa Resources in carrying out its objectives by demonstrating the
commercial viability and efficiently making use of low value natural resources located in Wallowa
County In 2010, Wallowa Resources received ownership of certain real property donated to the
Organization by the Wallowa Valley Health Care Foundation The property has become the
Organization’s headquarters and a source of additional revenue Wallowa Resources Stewardship Center
LLC is the legal entity created to accept, maintain and operate this property The Organization leases
space contained in the facility Wallowa Resources is the only member of Wallowa Resources
Stewardship Center LLC, and controls 100% of all membership interests All intercompany activity has
been eliminated in consolidation




Wallowa Resources
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Equity Method Investments

Wallowa Resources acquired a 31% interest in Integrated Biomass Resources, LLC (IBR) during the year
ended December 31, 2012 This investment has been accounted for using the equity method The
investment was acquired by allowing IBR the use of certain equipment belonging to Wallowa Resources
with no cash investment Wallowa Resources’ share of the accumulated losses are presented as a liability
and expense in the financial statements

Grants

Grants awarded to the Organization that will provide support for a particular program are recognized as an
increase in temporarily restricted net assets when the award is made and it is expected that conditions of
the award will be met If program expenditures must be incurred before reimbursement is made by the
grantor, however, the grant is recorded as this condition is met When money is received from a
government agency under a grant agreement where the conditions of the grant have not yet been fulfilled,
and there is the possibility of repayment should the grant conditions not be fulfilled, a deferred revenue
liability is recorded

Accounts and Notes Receivable

The Organization’s accounts receivable are primarily balances due on reimbursement based grant
agreements Short and long-term notes receivable are a result of business transactions with others The
Organization uses the allowance method for doubtful accounts

Inventories
Inventories consist of heating oil and biomass fuel used to heat the Stewardship Center building and are
valued at the lower of cost or market

Fixed Assets

Assets that are capital in nature, have a cost greater than $2,000, and have an expected useful life in
excess of one year are capitalized at cost, except for donations, which are recorded as contributions at
their estimated fair value Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has
restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their
use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as
restricted contributions Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets
are placed in service as instructed by the donor, and transfers temporarily restricted net assets to
unrestricted net assets The Organization depreciates property and equipment using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets Estimated useful lives generally range from five to
seven years for furniture, fixtures, computer equipment, software and vehicles, 10 to 25 years for
alternative energy equipment and 40 years for buildings Land is not depreciated

Income Taxes

Wallowa Resources is a not-for-profit Organization that is exempt from Federal and State income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisions However, Wallowa
Resources Community Solutions, Inc is a C-corporation subject to income tax As of December 31,



Wallowa Resources
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Income Taxes continued,

2013, the subsidiary had an unused net operating loss carry forward of $541,199 which can be used to
offset future taxable income Of this loss carry forward, $40,571 will expire in 2029, $211,641 will
expire in 2032, and $288,987 will expire in 2033 Income tax returns are filed in the United States and
Oregon As of December 31, 2013 all tax years prior to 2010 are no longer subject to examination by
taxing authorities Wallowa Resources Stewardship Center LLC is a single member limited liability
company and considered a disregarded entity for income tax purposes Its net income or loss is combined
with Wallowa Resources for reporting purposes

Investments

In accordance with FASB ASC 320, investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair
values are reported at their fair values in the Statement of Financial Position Unrealized gains and losses
are included in the change in net assets Investment income and gains restricted by a donor are reported
as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are met (either by passage of time or by use) in the
reporting period in which the income and gains are recognized

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments
available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Costs of providing the various programs, services and other activities are summarized on a functional
basis in the Statement of Activities Accordingly, certain costs are allocated among the various programs
and supporting services

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates

Restrictions on Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 consist of foundation grants that were
given to the Organization with the intent that they be used for a specified purpose The Organization
intends to spend these funds on each purpose specified in future periods

Fair Value Measurements

The Organization recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or would be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date A three-tier hierarchy maximizes the use of
observable market data and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs, to establish classification of fair
value measurements for disclosure purposes Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk Inputs may be
observable or unobservable Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources

15



Wallowa Resources
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Fair Value Measurements continued,

independent of the reporting entity Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
developed based on the best information available The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as
follows

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Organization has the ability to access at the measurement date These include highly liquid
U S Treasury securities and exchange traded equity and derivative instruments

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly Included in Level 2 are derivative instruments
which are priced using models with observable market inputs, including interest rates, foreign
currency, and certain credit swap contracts

Level 3 inputs are observable inputs for the asset or liability including assumptions about risk
Adjustment to fair value of “available for sale” securities is done on a periodic basis
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2012 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation

NOTE 2 — Investments

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of marketable equity securities only These securities are
considered level one, as described above Cost and fair value of the securities at December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follows

Fair Value Fair Value
Cost 12/31/2013 12/31/2012

Available for Sale
Capital Income Builder $ 931 $ 1.122 $ 976
Citigroup. Inc 868 52 43

$ 1.799 $ 1.174 $ 1.019
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Wallowa Resources
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - Cash
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are comprised of the following

12/31/2013 12/31/2012

Wallowa Resources

Community Bank Checking $ ({6.09D) $ 48433

Community Bank Satvings 11.131 11.120

Sterlmg Bank Money Market - 964

Edward Jones Money Market 31 31

Cash on Hand 286 285
Community Solutions

Community Bank Checking 1.670 4945

Capital Pacific Bank Checking - (12)
Stewardship Center

Bank of Eastern Oregon Checking 5.196 +.350

Totals $ (27.777) $  70.116

The Organization utilizes an integrated system of cash management whereby book bank overdrafts are
automatically covered by the line of credit as items are presented for payment Available funds in the
Organization’s checking account are regularly applied to reduce the line of credit balance

Depository accounts at each of the above banks are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
for up to $250,000 at each depository At December 31, 2013 the Organization had no uninsured cash
balances

NOTE 4 — Notes Receivable

In September 2011, Wallowa Resources Stewardship Center agreed to provide a revolving line of credit to
Wallowa Valley Networks, a local internet service provider, to facilitate infrastructure upgrades that
would benefit the Stewardship Center and its tenants, including the Organization The maximum amount
available under the line was $10,000 and interest was to accrue at the rate of 3 0% per annum No
monthly payments were required, however, the entire unpaid balance, including interest, was due and
payable on September 29, 2013 At December 31, 2012 the unpaid principal balance was $2,000, the note
was fully paid prior to the 2013 maturity date

On October 15, 2012, Wallowa Resources Community Solutions, Inc (CSI) received from Alternative
Energy Solutions International, Inc (AESI) an amended and restated promissory note in the amount of
$135,279 for the amount due as a result of AEST’s default on delivery of equipment CSI had purchased on
contract and subsequent default on an original note in the amount of $168,813, which liability had been
partially discharged by AEST’s subsequent delivery and installation of certain additional equipment as
agreed In April 2013, AESI made a $10,000 payment on the amended and restated promissory note,
$5,302 of which was applied to principal AESI defaulted on the original equipment delivery and both the
original and the amended and restated promissory notes due to financial hardship At December 31, 2013,
the remaining balance of the amended and restated note plus accrued interest totaled $137,267 In view of
AEST’s financial condition, but also recognizing that AESI is an expert on alternative energy and still
actively marketing equipment, Wallowa Resources management estimates that it will collect an additional



Wallowa Resources
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 — Notes Receivable, continued

$25,000 on the amended and restated note and has therefore recorded a $112.,267 allowance for doubtful
accounts, of which $85.279 was recorded in 2012 and $26,988 in 2013

As a condition of a lease of office space to the U S Department of Agriculture (USDA), Wallowa
Resources expended $79,209 during 2013 for improvements specifically for the convenience of the
USDA The USDA has agreed to pay for these improvements over 111 months with interest imputed at
1 5% The remaining balance of this receivable at December 31, 2013 is $76,544

NOTE 5 — Fixed Assets

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, changes in property, plant and equipment and related
accumulated depreciation were as follows

Disposals
Balance and Balance
12/31/2011 Additions Reclassifications 12/31/2012
Buildings and impros ements $ 864627 $ 36.857 $ - $ 901484
Equipment 571.391 1.268.001 10.577 1.828.815
Construction 1n progress 673.222 - 673.222 -
Land 100.000 - - 100.000
Subtotal 2.209.240 1.304.858 683.799 2.830.299
Accumulated depreciation (332.406) (82.164) (4.054) (410.516)
Fixed assets. net $ 1.876.834 $ 1.222.694 $ 679.745 $ 2.419.783
Disposals
Balance and Balance
12/31/2012 Additions Reclassifications 12/31/2013
Buildings and impros ements $ 901484 $ 2.300 $ - $  903.984
Equipment 1.828.815 27973 - 1.856.788
Land 100.000 - - 100.000
Subtotal 2.830.299 30.473 - 2.860.772
Accumulated depreciation (410.516) (131.557) - (342.073)
Fixed assets. net $ 2.419.783 $  (101.084) $ - $ 2.318.699

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $131,557 and $82,164
respectively

NOTE 6 — Retirement Plan

Wallowa Resources maintains a defined contribution retirement plan under Internal Revenue Code
Section 403(b) Employees over 21 years of age are eligible to participate in the plan upon employment
with Wallowa Resources and will receive employer contributions upon completion of six months of
continuous employment The plan currently provides for employer contributions of 4% of eligible
employee compensation Employee elective contributions may be made up to the amounts allowed by the
Internal Revenue Code This plan can be modified by the Board of Directors at any time For the years
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Wallowa Resources
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — Retirement Plan, continued

ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 total employer contributions to the plan were $13,007 and $14,475
respectively

NOTE 7 — Compensated Absences
All full-time and part-time employees are eligible for and begin to accrue vacation pay at the beginning of

the first full month of employment, subject to plan limits Vacation may be used after six months of
employment Monthly and annual vacation accruals are as follows

Years of Employment Hours per Month Hours per Year
0-1 6 66 80
1-3 10 120
3-8 1333 160
Over 8 16 66 200

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, accrued vacation pay totaled $19,426 and $24,447, respectively
Under the terms of the Organization’s policy, employees are allowed to accrue unused vacation up to a
maximum of 240 hours and unused vacation is paid at termination

Employees are also eligible for six days of personal leave per year to be used for illness or personal
business Personal leave does not carry over from year to year and unused leave is not paid at
termination

NOTE 8 — Line of Credit

Wallowa Resources has secured a $245,000 line of credit from Community Bank The terms of the
agreement include a due date of September 13, 2014 and a minimum 6 0% variable interest rate The
outstanding principal balance of this short term note at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $100,016 and
$245,000 respectively The note is secured by real property, accounts receivable, intangibles and contract
rights Interest is paid monthly

NOTE 9 — Short-Term Debt

On November 27, 2012, Wallowa Resources secured a short term loan of $18.000 from the Janet
Christine Noel Trust to conduct its activities This trust is administered by James Henson, a member of
the Organization’s Board of Directors The terms of the agreement included a due date of February 28,
2013 and an interest rate of 5% per annum The outstanding principal balance of this short term note at
December 31, 2012 was $18,000 The loan was paid in full in March 2013 and the interest was forgiven
as a contribution from the lender to Wallowa Resources

On November 7, 2012, Wallowa Resources secured a short term loan of $20,000 from G Douglas
McDaniel, a member of the Organization’s Board of Directors, to conduct its activities The terms of the
agreement included a due date of November 6, 2013 and an interest rate of 3% calculated on the basis of a
365-day year with interest due upon maturity The outstanding principal balance of this short term note at
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 — Short Term Debt, continued

December 31, 2012 was $20,000 In January 2013, the principal of this note and the accrued interest were
forgiven as a contribution from the lender to Wallowa Resources

On December 26, 2012, Wallowa Resources secured a short term loan of $5,000 from Peter Ferre, a
member of the Organization’s Board of Directors, to conduct its activities The terms of the agreement
included a due date of December 26, 2013 and an interest rate of 3% calculated on the basis of a 365-day
year with interest due upon maturity The outstanding principal balance of this short term note at
December 31, 2012 was $5,000 In January 2013, the principal of this note and the accrued interest were
forgiven as a contribution from the lender to Wallowa Resources

On November 19, 2012, Wallowa Resources Community Solutions, Inc converted accounts payable of
$141,498 to Wellens Farwell, Inc for Integrated Biomass Energy Campus project expenses to a short-
term promissory note The terms of the agreement included a due date of January 31, 2013 and an interest
rate of 2%, increasing to a default rate of 6 5% if the note was not paid by the due date The outstanding
principal balance of this promissory note at December 31, 2012 was $95,793 The note and accrued
interest were paid in full on July 31, 2013

On July 11, 2012, Wallowa Resources secured an advance from Wallowa County, Oregon for $75,000 in
order to make payment directly to the manufacturer for equipment ordered through AEST This was after
AESI encountered financial difficulty and was unable to make payment to the manufacturer from the
funds previously advanced to it by Wallowa Resources This advance was to be paid back from proceeds
of the AESI note when it is collected On October 1, 2012, an additional $20,000 was subsequently
borrowed from Wallowa County in order to complete the Integrated Biomass Energy Campus (IBEC)
Combined Heat and Power project This loan was to be paid back when funds are available As of
December 31, 2013 neither of these loan agreements were in writing On June 16, 2014, Wallowa
Resources and Wallowa County signed an agreement stipulating that as of December 31, 2013 the
$75,000 advance was to be considered a general support grant to facilitate the Organization’s investment
in IBEC and the $20,000 advance was to be considered a down-payment by Wallowa County on future
lease payments for additional space to be occupied by the Veterans Administration clinic located in the
Stewardship Center



Wallowa Resources
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NOTE 10 — Long-term Debt

Long-term debt was comprised of the following at December 31, 2013 and 2012
12/31/2013 12/31/2012

Wallowa Resources
Note pavable to Tovota Financial Services. secured by
equipment. monthly payments of $358. including interest
at 2 9%o. matures on Apul 23. 2015 3 5.619 3 9.689

Note Pavable to Sterling Savings Bank. secured by
equipment. monthly payments of $384. including interest
at 7 25%. matures May 1. 2013 - 1.864

Note Pavable to Erik Christoffersen. brother of Executive Directot
Nils Christoftersen. annual pavments ot $3.000.
mcluding mterest at 3 2%. matures December 31. 2018 25.000 -

Note pavable to James B Henson. Wallowa Resources Board
membet. annual payments ot $4.040. including interest at
5%. matures February 25. 2013 3.844 7.511

Community Solutions
Note pavable to James B Henson. Wallowa Resources Board
member. monthly pavments (estimated at $3.344 annually)
atre based upon feed-m tanft pavments recened tiom solar
generated electricity sales to Pacttic Power. including
mterest at 7%, maturity estimated to be January 31. 2023 22.469 24362

Note pavable to Myron Kutkpatrick. Wallowa Resources CFO. and
Kendra Kitkpatrick. monthly pavments (estimated at $2.573
annually) are based upon feed-n taritf pavments recened tfrom
solar generated electricity sales to Pacific Power. including
mterest at 7. maturity estimated to be January 31. 2023 17.283 18.740

Note pavable to Busmess Oregon. monthly pavments of $1.250.
pavments suspended until December 2014 0% interest.
matutity of January 1. 2018 62.500 -

Stewardship Centet
Note pavable to G Douglas MeDanitel Trust. trustee 1s Wallowa
Resources Board membet. originally structured as a hine of credit
with a maximum amount av atlable of $400.000 At December 31.
2013. with a prinerpal balance of $400.000 and no accrued mterest
outstanding. $200.000 of the principal was forgiven by the lender
as a contribution to Wallowa Resources Stewardship Center. LLC
and the remaining $200.000 was comverted to a 20-vear term loan at
a fixed mnterest rate of' 3 2% with monthly payments of $1.129 33
This note will mature December 31. 2033 200.000 391.000

Note Pavable to the Christoftersen Family Living Trust. Trustee 15
Enk Christoftersen. brother of Executive Duector Nils
Christoftersen. monthly pavments of $782 65. including

mterest at 6 5%. matures May 15,2018 35.981 -
Total Long Term Debt 372.696 453.166
Less Current Portion (35.012) (26.541)
Long Term Debt Net of Curtent Portion $ 337.684 $ 426.625
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 — Long-term Debt, continued

Aggregate maturities of long term debt over the next five years are estimated as follows

Year Ending
December 31, Amount
2014 $ 35.013
2015 40.672
2016 40.293
2017 41.415
2018 35.788
Thereafter 179.515
Total $ 372.696

Cash basis interest paid for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $44.879 and $36,929
respectively

NOTE 11 — Commitments and Contingencies

During 2012, Wallowa Resources Community Solutions, Inc (CSI) became an equity owner in Integrated
Biomass Resources LLC (IBR), contributing the use of equipment During the year, one of the original
members of IBR withdrew and a new member was admitted, leaving CSI’s ownership interest at 31% as
of December 31 CSI was contingently liable on IBR’s line of credit with Community Bank, the balance
of which was $59.600 at December 31, 2012 1In June 2013, IBR secured a $3,750,000 loan from
BizCapital BIDCO I, LLC with aU S Small Business Administration (SBA) guarantee CSlis a co-
guarantor of this debt along with the majority owners of IBR CST’s loan guarantee is made specifically
by and limited to CSI whose assets are the basis of the pledge The guarantees of the majority owners and
CSI are primary to the SBA guarantee

Amounts received or receivable from outside agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by those
agencies Adjustments in amounts claimed as allowable program expenses may result in a future liability
of the Organization

NOTE 12 — Related Parties

During 2011, Integrated Biomass Resources LLC (IBR) partnered with Wallowa Resources to build a
biomass energy complex on property then owned by Wallowa County but subsequently purchased by
IBR During 2012, Wallowa Resources Community Solutions, Inc formally became an equity owner in
IBR as described in Note 11, and as of December 31, 2012 and 2013 owned 31% of that entity A former
Wallowa Resources Board Member and his spouse own 57% of IBR

b
b
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NOTE 12 — Related Parties, continued

From time to time, the Organization has entered into contracts for construction and professional services
with members of the Board of Directors and its Advisory Committee During the years ended December
31,2013 and 2012, service contracts with related parties totaled $57,104 and $91,383 respectively
Wallowa Resources also rented office space to businesses owned by a CSI Board member for a total of
$2,800 and $8,817 for 2013 and 2012 respectively

Long-term and short-term financing has been obtained from members of the Board of Directors of
Wallowa Resources and its Chief Financial Officer Terms of these financing arrangements and the
relationships are disclosed in Notes (9) and (10)

NOTE 13- Fundraising Activities

Each year, Wallowa Resources conducts several activities in an effort to raise community awareness and
funds The total amount directly spent on fundraising activities was $12,508 and $5,367 for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 respectively

NOTE 14- Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the Auditor’s report and there are no material
subsequent events that require disclosure in the financial statements

b
(%)
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Wallowa Resources

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS
Curtent Assets
Cash on hand and 1n banks
Accounts teceivable
Investments
Prepaid expenses
Notes recen able - curtent portion
Accrued interest
Inventory
Total Curtent Assets

Fixed Assets
Buildings and improv ements
Equipment
Land
Accumulated depreciation
Net Frxed Assets

Other Assets
Notes recen able. net of curtent portion
Investments 1n subsidiaties
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Curtent Liabilities

Accounts payable

Bank overdiaft

Pavioll habilities

Short-term notes

Accrued vacation

Accrued interest

Long-term debt - curtent matunities

Tenant deposits

Deferted 1evenue

Total Curtent Liabilities

Non-curtent Liabilities
Accumulated losses on equity method
iy estment
Long-term debt. net of curtent maturities
Total Non-curtent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Temporanly restricted
Additional paid-in capatal
Retained earnings
Member equity
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

December 31, 2013

WR WR
Wallowa Community Stewardship Intercompany Consolidated
Resources Solutions. Inc Center LLC Elimiations Balances

$ 11.446 $ 1.670 $ 5.196 $ - $ 18.312
56.318 11.703 2.532 (3.605) 66.948
1.174 - - - 1.174
18,618 858 6.114 - 25.590
- - 9.185 - 9.185
- 7.291 5.353 (5.353) 7.291
- - 17.188 - 17.188
87.556 21.522 145.568 (8.958) 145.688
12.000 - 891.984 - 903,984
492,166 1.347.307 17.015 - 1.856.788
- - 100.000 - 100.000

(376.645) (83.690) (81.738) - (542.073)
127.821 1.263.617 927.261 - 2.318.699
- 20,490 165.029 (100.451) 85.068
1.822.002 - - (1.822.002) -
1.822.002 20.490 165.029 (1.922.453) 85.068
$ 2037379 5 1.305.629 1.137.858 $  (1.931.411) $  2.549.455
$ 46.812 $ 32319 $ 50.876 $ (3.605) 126.402
46.091 - - - 46.091
9.950 1444 893 - 12.287
175.297 15.170 - (100.451) 120.016
19.426 - 481 - 19.907
3823 1.995 590 (5.353) 1.055
13.036 7472 14504 - 35.012
- - +4.225 - +4.225
102.694 35.000 - - 137.694
417.129 123,400 71.569 (109.410) 502.689
- 110.259 - - 110.259
21.427 94.780 221.477 - 337.684
21.427 205.039 221.477 - 4147.943
1438.556 328.439 293.046 (109.410) 950.632
1.331.982 - - - 1.331.982
266.841 - - - 266.841
- 864.232 - (864.232 -
- 112.958 - (112.958) -
- - 841812 (844.812) -
1.598.823 977.190 841812 (1.822.002) 1.598.823
$ 2037379 5 1.305.629 $ 1.137.858 $  (1.931.411) $  2.549.455




Wallowa Resources

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Revenues and Support

Fedetal. state and local gov ernment grants

Foundation and corporate grants

Contributions and scholarships

Progiam service 1ev enue

Rentals

Sale of non-1etundable option
Total Revenues and Support

Expenses
Durect Program Costs
Personnel costs
Contract services
Supplies
Rent
Taxes
Insurance
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Travel
Other duect expenses
Total Direct Program Costs

Genetral and Administratine Costs
Personnel costs
Contract services
Supplies
Rent
Taxes
Insurance
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Travel
Other expenses
Bad debt expense

Total Genetal and Administrative Costs

Othet (Income) and Expense
Interest income
Income fiom subsidiaties
Gain on stocks
Other income
Interest expense
Depreciation
Loss on equity method ny estment

Total Othet (Income) and Expense

Change 1n Net Assets

Beginning Net Assets

Contributed Capital

Net Assets Released fiom Restriction

Ending Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Untestiicted
WR WR
Wallowa Community Stewardship Intercompany Consolhidated
Resources Solutions. Inc Center LLC Eliminations Balances
519.081 $ 8.715 $ - $ - $ 527.796
128.637 - - - 128.637
151.643 - 200.000 - 351.643
177.826 213952 - (97.300) 294478
771 - 210.326 (34.151) 176.946
- - 12.500 - 12.500
977.959 222.667 422.826 (131.451) 1.492.001
285.886 64.558 46.120 - 396.564
315.168 107.514 32,672 (59.300) 396.054
36.181 3339 3431 - 42.951
200 - - - 200
- 7.583 14.698 - 22.281
(5.355) 6.705 16.329 - 17.679
2.240 1.299 97.145 - 100.684
2.218 2477 9.297 - 13.992
10.255 6.317 - - 16.572
18.623 - - - 18.623
665.416 199.792 219.692 (59.300) 1.025.600
167.498 - - - 167.498
93.961 - - (38.000) 55.961
2.240 - - - 2.240
30.379 4232 - (34.151) 160
1.554 539 - - 2.093
32,428 - - - 32,428
4467 - - 1467
3.893 - - - 3.893
1.643 - - - 1.643
13.604 1.033 474 - 15.111
- 26.989 - - 26.989
351.667 32.793 474 (72.151) 312.783
(4.739) (11.494) (7.154) 13.066 (10.321)
11.954 - - (11.954) -
(121) - - - (121)
(1.192) - (3.079) - (4.271)
17.515 13.390 27.826 (13.066) 45.665
42.046 65.722 23,788 - 131.556
- 95.697 - - 95.697
65.463 163.315 41.381 (11.954) 258.205
(104.587) (173.233) 161.279 11.954 (104.587)
1.368.273 1.121.184 683.533 (1.804.717) 1.368.273
- 29.239 - (29.239) -
68.296 - - - 68.296
1.331.982 $ 977.190 $ 844.812 $ (1.822.002) $ 1.331.982




Temporatily Restricted

WR WR
Wallowa Community Stewardship Intercompany Consolhidated
Resources Solutions. Inc Center LLC Eliminations Balances

51 $ - $ - $ - $ 51
221.738 - - - 221.738

42.067 - - - 42.067

263.855 - - - 263.855

263.855 - - - 263.855

71.282 - - - 71.282

(68.296) - - - (68.296)

2066.841 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 206.841
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Wallowa Resources

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash on hand and m banks
Accounts tecen able
Investments
Prepaid expenses
Acctued mterest
Inventory
Total Curtent Assets

Frved Assets
Buildings and improy ements
Equipment
Land
Accumulated depreciation
Net Fined Assets

Other Assets
Note recenable
Im estments mn subsidiaties
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Curtent Liabilities

Accounts pavable

Pavioll Liabilities

Short-term notes

Acctued vacation

Acctued mterest

Long-term debt - curtent maturities
Tenant Deposits

Deterted revenue

Total Curtent Liabilities

Non-curtent Liabilities
Accumulated losses on equity method
myestment
Long-term debt. net of curtent maturities
Total Non-curtent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Tempotarily restricted
Additional pard-in capital
Retamed earnings
Member equity
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

WR WR
Wallowa Community Stewardship Intercompany Consolidated
Resources Solutions. Ine Center LLC Elimmations Balances

$ 60.834 3 4933 3 4350 3 - 3 70.116
76.493 105.244 2.591 (269) 184.059
1.019 - - - 1.019
23,440 1416 1.174 - 26.030
2.420 2.155 1.474 (3.833) 2.216
- - 16.751 - 16.751
164.206 113.748 26.340 (4.102) 300.191
12.000 - 889.483 - 901.483
483.255 1.342.046 3.515 - 1.828.816
- - 100.000 - 100.000
(334.598) (17.968) (37.950) - (410.516)
160.657 1.324078 935.048 - 2.419.783
95.000 72.000 153.421 (268.421) 52.000
1.80-L.717 - - (1.804.717) -
1.899.717 72.000 153.421 (2.073.138) 52.000
$  2.224.580 5 1.509.826 $ 1.114.809 $ (2.077.240) 5 2.771.974
$ 80.044 3 38.138 3 34.700 3 (269) 3 152.612
8.835 10 42 - 8.887
457.500 289.714 - (268.421) +478.793
23.625 - 822 - 24447
1.975 3.117 487 (3.833) 1.746
13.447 2.861 10.233 - 26.541
- - 4.225 - 4225
193.982 - - - 193.982
779.408 333.840 50.509 (272.523) 891.233
- 14562 - - 14562
5.617 40.240 380.767 - 426.624
5.617 5-..802 380.767 - +441.186
785.025 388.642 431.276 (272.523) 1.332.419
1.368.273 - - - 1.368.273
71.282 - - - 71.282
- 834992 - (834.992) -
- 286.192 - (286.192) -
- - 683.533 (683.533) -
1.439.555 1.121.184 683.533 (1.804.717) 1.439.555
$  2.224.580 5 1.509.826 $ 1.114.809 5 (2.077.240) $ 2771974




Wallowa Resources

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Rev enues and Support
Federal. state and local government grants
Foundation and corporate grants
Contributions and scholarships
Program service tevenue
Rentals
Sale of business energy tax credit
Total Revenues and Support

Expenses
Ditect Program Costs
Personnel costs
Consultants and contractors
Project supplies and equipment
Rent
Taxes
Insurance
Utilities
Repaus and Maintenance
Travel
Other Direct Expenses
Total Direct Program Costs

Genetal and Administrative Costs
Personnel costs
Contract services
Supplies
Rent
Taxes
Insurance
Utilities
Repaus and mantenance
Travel
Other expenses
Bad Debt Expense
Total Genetal and Administrative Costs

Other (Income) and Expense
Interest income
Income tiom subsidiaties
Gain on sale of fixed asset
Gain on stochs
Othet income
Interest expense
Deptreciation
Loss on equity method investment
Total Othet (Income) and Expense

Change 1n Net Assets
Beginning Net Assets
Net Assets Released fiom Restriction

Ending Net Assets

Unrestricted
WR WR
Wallowa Community Stewardship Intercompany Consolidated
Resources Solutions. Inc Center LLC Eliminations Balances

$ 490.046 $ 176.838 $ - $ - $ 666.884
210.161 70.000 - - 280.161
115.234 - - - 115.234
86.089 428.789 - (310.155) 204,723
545 - 260.105 (35.279) 225371

- 104.798 - - 104.798
902.075 780.425 260.105 (345.434) 1.597.171
343017 68.591 53.058 - 464.666
459.738 137.633 105.338 (310.155) 392.554
19.385 2.004 3.497 - 24.886
100 - - - 100

- - 10.397 - 10.397

2.398 3.752 10.359 - 16.509
781 9.734 112.375 - 122.890
4104 8.356 5.326 - 17.786
15.605 7.758 - - 23363
10.512 - - - 10.512
855.640 237.828 300.350 (310.155) 1.083.663
188.189 - - - 188.189
30.251 - - - 30.251
9.467 - - - 9.467
30.173 6.166 - (35.279) 1.060
1.352 150 - - 1.502
30.838 - - - 30.838
8.028 - - - 8.028
3412 - - - 3412
167 - - - 167
15.609 2712 941 - 19.262

- 85.279 - - 85.279
317.786 94.307 941 (35.279) 377.755
(2.472) (6.029) (3.596) 5.955 (6.142)
(353.010) - - 353.010 -
(1.527) - - - (1.527)
(76) - - - (76)
(1.233) - (10.835) - (12.068)
16.492 8.557 19.088 (5.955) 38.182
49.817 10.187 22.160 - 82.164

- 14.562 - - 14.562
(292.009) 27.277 26.817 353.010 115.095
20.658 421.013 (68.003) (353.010) 20.658
1.266.460 678.171 751.536 (1.429.707) 1.266.460
81.155 22.000 - (22.000) 81.155

3 1.121.184

$  (1.804.717)

(%)
b



Temporarnly Restricted

WR WR

Wallona Community Stewardship Intercompany Consolidated

Resources Solutions. Inc Center LLC Eliminations Balances
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
60.722 - - - 60.722
60.722 - - - 60.722
60.722 - - - 60.722
91.715 22.000 - (22.000) 91.715

(81.1595) (22.000) - 22.000 (81.1595)

$ 71.282 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 71.282

(%)
(%)
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